
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

HUMBLE CITY COUNCIL 

MEETING PACKET 

JULY 10, 2014  



 

 

 

Mayor Council Members  

Donald McMannes Allan Steagall 

City Manager Ray Calfee 

Darrell Boeske Merle Aaron 

City Secretary Andy Curry 

Jason Stuebe Norman Funderburk  

     

 

Agenda 

Humble City Council 

Regular Meeting 

Thursday, July 10, 2014 6:30 P.M. 

City Hall Council Chamber, 114 West Higgins 

Humble, Texas 

 

Call to order. 

 

1. Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

2. Consent agenda items which consist of ministerial or “housekeeping” items as required 

by law.  Items may be removed from the consent agenda and discussed by majority vote 

of the Council 

 

a. Minutes – June 26, 2014 Regular Meeting 

b. Financial Statement. 

c. Current Invoices. 

d. Monthly Department Reports. 

e. Correspondence. 

 

3. Adoption of Resolution 14-736 establishing a fee schedule for public records requests. 

 

4. Approval of a Development Plat submitted by Humble Shell, LLC - Atascocita Plaza 

being a subdivision of 1.3857 acres of land located in the John M. Wilson Survey, 

Abstract No. 940 of the City of Humble, Harris County, Texas; 1 unrestricted reserve, 1 

block.   

 

5. Approval of a Contract Amendment with ARKK Engineers for Engineering Services for 

2013 Concrete & Asphalt Pavement Improvements Project in the amount of $47,875.00. 

 

6. Adjournment 

 

Notice is hereby given that a Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Humble, Texas 

will be held on Thursday, July 10, 2014 at 6:30 P.M. at the City Hall Council Chamber, 114 

West Higgins, Humble, Texas.  The following subjects will be discussed, to wit: See Agenda. 



 

 

Posted this 7
h
 day of July, 2014 at 5:00 P.M. 

 

 

 

      

City Secretary 

 

I, the undersigned, do hereby certify that the above Notice of Meeting of the Governing Body of 

the City of Humble, Texas, is a true and correct copy of said Notice and that I posted a true and 

correct copy of said notice on the bulletin board at City Hall, 114 West Higgins, Humble, Texas 

and the City’s website, www.cityofhumble.com.  The Agenda and Notice are readily accessible 

to the general public at all times.  Said Notice and Agenda were posted on  July 7,  2014 at 5:00 

P.M. and remained so posted continuously for at least 72 hours proceeding the scheduled time of 

said meeting. 

 

This public notice was removed from the official posting board at the Humble City Hall on the 

following date and time:       by                   

 

Subscribed and sworn to before me on this the  , day of    , 2014. 

 

 

      

Notary Public – Harris County, Texas  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS FACILITY IS WHEELCHAIR ACCESSIBLE AND ACCESSIBLE PARKING SPACES 

ARE AVAILABLE.  REQUESTS FOR ACCOMODATIONS OR INTERPRETIVE SERVICES 

MUST BE MADE 48 HOURS PRIOR TO THIS MEETING.  PLEASE CONTACT THE CITY 

SECRETARY’S OFFICE AT (281) 446-3061 OR FAX (281) 446-7843 FOR FURTHER 

INFORMATION. 

 

 

http://www.cityofhumble.com/


 

 

 

COUNCIL MEETING 

7-10-2014 

AGENDA ITEM #2 

 

CONSENT AGENDA 

 

A – JUNE 26, 2014 COUNCIL MINUTES 

B – FINANCIAL STATEMENT 

C – CURRENT INVOICES 

D – MONTHLY DEPARTMENT REPORTS 

E – CORRESPONDENCE 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

COUNCIL MEETING 

7-10-2014 

AGENDA ITEM #2A 

 

JUNE 26, 2014 

COUNCIL MINUTES 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Minutes 06-26-2014 

HUMBLE CITY COUNCIL 
 

MINUTES 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
 

JUNE 26, 2014 – 6:30 P.M. 
 

HELD AT CITY HALL, 114 WEST HIGGINS, HUMBLE, TEXAS 
 

STATE OF TEXAS § 
   § 
COUNTY OF HARRIS § 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  Mayor Donnie McMannes, Presiding 
    Council Member Ray Calfee 
    Council Member Andy Curry 

Council Member Norman Funderburk 
Council Member Allan Steagall 

    City Manager Darrell Boeske 
    City Secretary Jason Stuebe 
 
MEMBERS ABSENT:  Mayor Pro Tem Merle Aaron 
 
STAFF PRESENT:  Police Chief Gary Warman 
    Fire Chief Gary Outlaw 
    Finance Director Aimee Phillips 
     Asst. Public Works Director Mark Arnold 
    Police Lt. Delbert Dawes 
             
VISITORS PRESENT:  John Rudloff 
         
Mayor Donnie McMannes called the regular meeting of the Humble City Council to order with a quorum 
present at 6:30 P.M.   

 
1. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE. 

Council Member Funderburk offered the invocation and led the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 

2. CONSENT AGENDA. 
2a.  Minutes – June 26, 2014 Regular Meeting 
2b.  Current Invoices 
2c.  Monthly Department Reports 
2d. Correspondence 
 
Upon a motion made by Council Member Funderburk, the City Council voted five (5) for and none 
(0) opposed to approve the Consent Agenda.  
 



Minutes 06-26-2014 

3. ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION 14-735 AMENDING THE ANIMAL CONTROL FEE SCHEDULE BY 
INCREASING THE FEE FOR ANIMAL MICRO-CHIPS AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
Upon a motion made by Mayor McMannes, the City Council voted five (5) for and none (0) opposed 
to adopt Resolution 14-735. 
 

4. APPROVAL OF THE CITY OF HUMBLE GROUNDWATER REDUCTION PLAN UPDATE. 
 
City Manager Boeske explained that the Plan Update is required by the Harris County Subsidence 
District.  
 
Upon a motion by Council Member Steagall, the City Council voted five (5) for and none (0) opposed 
to approve the update to the City of Humble Groundwater Reduction Plan.    
 

5. APPROVAL OF A CONTRACT RENEWAL WITH LINEBARGER GOGGAN BLAIR & SAMPSON, LLP FOR 
THE PURPOSES OF COLLECTING PROPERTY TAXES OWED TO THE CITY. 
 
City Manager Boeske noted that Linebarger has done a marvelous job for the city previously and 
that he recommended retaining their services. 
 
Upon a motion by Council Member Curry, the City Council voted five (5) for and none (0) opposed to 
approve the contract renewal with Linebarger Goggan Blair & Sampson, LLP.    
 

There being no further business before the City Council, Mayor McMannes adjourned the Regular 
Meeting of the City Council at 6:33 P.M. on Thursday, June 26, 2014.   

 
 
 
        
             

       D.G. McMannes 
       Mayor 
 
 
 ATTEST: 
 
 
       
 Jason Stuebe 
 City Secretary 



 

 

 

COUNCIL MEETING 

7-10-2014 

AGENDA ITEM #2B 

 

FINANCIAL STATEMENT 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

COUNCIL MEETING 

7-10-2014 

AGENDA ITEM #2C 

 

CURRENT INVOICES 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

COUNCIL MEETING 

7-10-2014 

AGENDA ITEM #2D 

 

DEPARTMENT MONTHLY REPORTS 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

































































































































 

 

 

COUNCIL MEETING 

7-10-2014 

AGENDA ITEM #2E 

 

CORRESPONDENCE 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



	  

1 
	  

 

June 27, 2014 
Number 22 

 
 
 

TML President Speaks to Legislature About Transportation 
 
On Monday, June 23, League President Jungus Jordan testified to the Senate Transportation 
Committee on interim charges related to transportation congestion and mobility.  President 
Jordan focused on the need for cities to partner with state government to meet the needs of a 
growing population.   
 
Since 1950, Texas population growth has far exceeded the national average.  However, new 
Interstate highway construction hasn’t come close to keeping pace, according to Mr. Jordan.  He 
stressed to the committee’s chairman, former Jacksonville Mayor and now Senator Robert 
Nichols, that the League is committed to support new state strategies that would fund new 
transportation infrastructure development. 
 
Mr. Jordan also explained that the League is supportive of Speaker Joe Straus’s initiative to end 
non-transportation related diversions from the state highway fund.  The League’s board is 
considering adopting a resolution in favor of diversion reform at its meeting on June 27 in Fort 
Worth. 
 
To view Mr. Jordan’s testimony, click here and fast forward to two hours and 34 minutes.  
 
 

Sunset Advisory Commission Recommends Eliminating 
Code Enforcement Officer Licensing Program 

 
The Texas Sunset Advisory Commission is a state agency led by a group of state representatives 
and senators.  The “sunset” process is simply a periodic review of state agencies to ensure that 
they are performing efficiently and/or whether they should be changed or eliminated.  Sunset 
staff “performs extensive research and analysis to evaluate the need for, performance of, and 



	  

2 
	  

improvements to the agency under review.”  The review typically results in legislation to 
implement the recommendations of the commission. 
 
During the current sunset cycle, the Texas Department of State Health Services (DSHS) is under 
review.  One issue has resulted in a recommendation that would affect cities.  “Issue 3” in the 
staff report concludes that “the unmanageable scope of DSHS’s regulatory functions reduces 
needed focus on protecting public health.”  
 
Why is that recommendation relevant to cities?  One component of DSHS’s regulatory functions 
is the “Code Enforcement Officer Licensing Program.”  The program is a voluntary licensing 
scheme that allows an applicant with a GED or high school diploma and at least one year or 
more of experience in the field of code enforcement who successfully completes training and 
passes an exam to use the title of “Code Enforcement Officer.”  (No other person, even if 
performing the same job with a city, can use the title.)  There are currently 2,201 licensed code 
enforcement officers in the state. 
 
According to the Sunset staff report: 
 

[T]he state establishes qualifications to determine who can perform these jobs and the 
standards by which they must be performed, and then enforces these standards. Such 
significant intrusions into the workplace must be justified by a clear threat to the health, 
safety, or welfare of the public. 
 
Even with such detailed analysis, any attempt to scale back or streamline state 
regulation is difficult due to an array of factors that seem to favor the creation and 
perpetuation of regulatory programs…[t]hese factors include the active interest of the 
regulated community to be regulated and to exert control once regulation has been 
established… 

 
Sunset staff found that “continued regulatory expansion combined with shrinking resources has 
created an unmanageable undertaking and ineffective structure at DSHS.”  They believe that 
fulfilling multiple responsibilities with limited resources means high-risk programs are stretched 
thin and low-risk programs are forced to the margins. Because of the magnitude of any potential 
decision to deregulate an activity or occupation, Sunset staff concluded that only programs 
meeting a number of criteria would be considered for “deregulation” (i.e. elimination). The 
following chart shows the criteria related to code enforcement officer licensing:  
	  

 



	  

3 
	  

 
 
 
According to the report, “[s]ome programs merely prohibit the use of a title, making regulation 
optional.”  That is what the current code enforcement officer licensing scheme does.  Pursuant to 
that logic, the staff recommended eliminating the program.    
 
Interestingly, DSHS is essentially self-funded.  This means that it pays for itself by imposing 
fees on those it regulates.  As with other state agencies, the recent state budget trend has been to 
impose a “hidden tax” on those being regulated.  (For example, the Texas Commission on Fire 
Protection generates – from fees on firefighters that are typically paid by cities – an additional $3 
million that goes to fund general state operations.)  The staff recommendation to eliminate the 
programs would actually cost the state’s general fund $1.6 million per year.  That’s because 
DSHS would “no longer [be] collecting excess fees from the deregulated programs that are 
currently deposited in the general revenue fund.”  In plain English, this all means that code 
enforcement officers (cities) have been voluntarily paying a “hidden state tax” through higher 
than necessary certification fees. 
 
The Sunset Commission has sent the code enforcement officer issue to a subcommittee for 
further review.  The League will seek input from its General Government Legislative Policy 
Committee on August 15 to determine the recommended position on the issue.  
 
 

Austin Court of Appeals: 
City-Related Email in Personal Account is Public Information 

 
The Austin Court of Appeals recently decided Adkisson v. Abbott, a Public Information Act 
case.  The court concluded that: (1) a county commissioner’s emails about public business that 
were sent and received on his private account are public information; and (2) the emails are 
owned by and held for the county.  
 
The court’s conclusion that the emails are public information is consistent with the attorney 
general’s long-held interpretation of the Act. Thus, is not terribly surprising.  Moreover, the 
court’s opinion is essentially a moot point because of 2013 amendments to the Act in S.B. 1368.  
That bill makes public all emails regarding public business, regardless of whether they are on 
personal or governmental email accounts.  
 
The court’s conclusion that the emails were owned by and held for the county is of greater 
interest because governmental entities have struggled over: (1) whether they can force officials 
and employees to turn over emails in private accounts; and (2) the possible consequences for not 
doing so.   
 
The court held that, under the Local Government Records Act and the county’s record retention 
policies, the county owns the emails.  Significant to the court’s decision is the fact that the 



	  

4 
	  

commissioner “is the officer for public information and the custodian, as defined by Section 
201.003, Local Government Code, of the information created or received by” his 
office.  Because city councilmembers do not have these same statutory obligations, the opinion 
may not offer much guidance as to whether a city “owns” a city councilmember’s private 
account emails.    
 
Though the court dismissed arguments about the commissioner’s privacy interests, it offered 
some general observations that are relevant to city officials.  First, the court notes that, when 
elected, the commissioner relinquished some of the privacy expectations of a private citizen, at 
least with regards to his work as a commissioner. Second, the court concludes that, while an 
official may have some reasonable expectation of privacy in his personal information, there is no 
right to privacy protecting public information just because it’s kept in a personal email account. 
 
 

Court Again Affirms Municipal Authority to Require Utility 
Relocation for Public Projects 

 
A state district court has yet again affirmed municipal authority to require private utilities to 
relocate their facilities for public projects.   
 
In 2006, the City of Richardson renewed its electric franchise agreement with TXU Electric 
(now Oncor).   The franchise required the relocation of Oncor’s facilities – at Oncor’s cost – 
when required for city construction projects.  
 
In 2010, pursuant to franchise terms, the city requested that Oncor relocate its utility poles in 32 
alleys for reconstruction and widening.   Oncor refused to do so. 
 
In 2012, the city filed suit in state district court in Dallas to enforce the franchise provisions and 
– alternatively – to enforce the common law rule on relocation.  The common law rule has come 
from court opinions over the years that have concluded that the public’s right to use streets is 
paramount to a private company’s.   (In addition, state law contains a provision that requires 
relocation for the widening of a “street.”  Part of Oncor’s dispute is that an “alley” isn’t a street.)   
 
The court recently ordered summary judgment in favor of the city on all issues.  The suit seems 
to simply be another in a long and storied dispute between cities and some utility providers over 
right-of-way issues, and the court’s decision may be appealed. 
 
 

Proposed TxDOT Billboard Rules:  Billboard Height 
 
Current Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT) rules limit billboard height along state 
highways to a maximum of 42.5 feet.  TxDOT has proposed rules that would allow a maximum 
height of 65 feet.  The taller maximum would include signs within a city’s limits, unless the 
city’s ordinances prohibit signs or limit their height to some lesser maximum height.  
 



	  

5 
	  

City officials who are concerned about the regulation of billboard height should review their sign 
ordinance to ensure that the maximum height in the ordinance is appropriate for their 
community.  (Once a sign is constructed under the city’s and/or state’s current rules, it is 
expensive and administratively difficult to have the sign’s height reduced or placement 
changed.)   
 
The proposed rules are available at: 
 
http://www.sos.state.tx.us/texreg/archive/June132014/Proposed%20Rules/43.TRANSPORTATI
ON.html#93 
 
Written comments can be sent to the Texas Transportation Commission until July 14, 2014.  
Please contact Laura Mueller at the TML Legal Department at 512-213-7400 or laura@tml.org 
with any questions regarding the proposed rules or sign regulation in general.   
 
 

EPA Proposes Rule Clarifying “Waters of the U.S.” 
 
U.S. Supreme Court opinions issued in 2001 and 2006 made determining which “waters of the 
U.S.” (e.g., bodies of water) are subject to federal Clean Water Act protections difficult.  (Some 
argued that “puddles” near streams could even be subject to the law.)   
 
In response to the confusion, the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) and the U.S. 
Army Corps of Engineers have recently published a proposed “Waters of the U.S.” rule to clarify 
how the federal Clean Water Act should apply to streams and wetlands.   
 
The EPA has extended the public comment period for the Waters of the U.S. proposed rule to 
October 20, 2014.  Information about the proposed rule, including how to file a comment, can be 
found at www.epa.gov/uswaters.   
  
The National League of Cities, along with other national local government organizations, has 
submitted comments on behalf of cities seeking additional time and scientific data prior to the 
proposed rule adoption. Those comments are available at: 
 
http://www.nlc.org/Documents/Influence%20Federal%20Policy/Advocacy/Regulatory/NACo%2
0NLC%20USCM%20Waters%20of%20the%20US%20Connectivity%20Response%20letter.pdf 
 
League Staff will continue to monitor and report on this rulemaking process.   
 
 

Speaker Straus Creates  
Select Committee on Economic Development Incentives 

 
Texas House Speaker Joe Straus recently created the Select Committee on Economic 
Development Incentives, which will assess the economic benefit provided by state and local 



	  

6 
	  

incentive programs and make recommendations to make those programs more effective and 
efficient.  The committee will determine the types of economic development projects that offer 
the most benefit to the state and suggest opportunities to focus on those projects.  
 
Specifically, the committee is charged to:   
 

1. Determine the types or categories of economic development projects that provide the 
greatest benefit to the state and make recommendations on or target the types or 
categories of economic development projects that provide the greatest long-term benefit 
to the state. 

2. Catalog and evaluate economic development incentive grants awarded at the state level 
and assess their relative success, recognizing adjustments or modifications made to the 
initial criteria outlined in the award contracts. 

3. Examine the agencies administering economic development incentive programs and 
make recommendations about where consolidating or moving functions improves 
efficiency. 

4. Identify any problems in coordination between state and local economic development 
entities and make recommendations to improve coordination where beneficial. 

5. Review best practices of economic development incentive programs and make 
recommendations on changes to existing programs where appropriate. 

 
The committee will be chaired by Angie Chen Button (R – Richardson). Eddie Rodriguez (D – 
Austin) will serve as vice chair.  The members include: 
 

• Trent Ashby (R – Lufkin).  
• Joe Deshotel (D – Beaumont). 
• John Kuempel (R – Seguin). 
• Jodie Laubenberg (R – Murphy).  
• J.M. Lozano (R – Kingsville).  
• Borris Miles (D – Houston).  
• Poncho Nevarez (D – Eagle Pass).  
• René Oliveira (D – Brownsville).  
• Mary Ann Perez (D – Houston).  
• Drew Springer (R – Muenster).  
• Jason Villalba (R – Dallas). 

 
The League will monitor the committee’s work and report as necessary. 
	  
 

Resolutions for the 2014 TML Annual Conference 
 
The TML Constitution states that resolutions for consideration at the Annual Conference must be 
submitted to the TML headquarters 45 calendar days prior to the first day of the Annual 
Conference. For 2014, this provision means that resolutions from any member city, TML region, 



	  

7 
	  

or TML affiliate must arrive at the TML headquarters no later than 5:00 p.m. on August 18, 
2014. 
 
The TML Board of Directors has adopted several procedures governing the resolutions process. 
Please review the following items carefully and thoroughly. 

 
1. No resolution may be considered by the TML Resolutions Committee 

unless it has prior approval of: (a) the governing body of a TML member 
city; (b) the governing body or membership of a TML affiliate; or (c) the 
membership of a TML region at a regional meeting. 
 

2. TML member cities, regions, and affiliates that wish to submit a resolution 
must complete a resolution cover sheet. The cover sheet is available here.  
Please feel free to make as many copies of this cover sheet as you desire.  
The cover sheet must be attached to the resolution throughout each step of 
the resolutions process. 

 
3. It is recommended that any resolution state one of four categories to better 

direct League staff.  Those categories are: 
 

• Seek Introduction and Passage means that the League can attempt to 
find a sponsor, will provide testimony, and will otherwise actively 
pursue passage. Bills in this category are known as “TML bills.”   

 
• Support means the League will attempt to obtain passage of the 

initiative if it is introduced by a city or some other entity.  
 

• Oppose. 

• Take No Position. 

Please see the 2014 TML Legislative Policy Development Process for 
more information. 
 

4. Resolutions submitted will be thoroughly discussed at the TML Annual 
Conference.  The Resolutions Committee is appointed by the TML 
President and is made up of city officials from TML member cities across 
the state. 
 

5. The city, region, or affiliate that submits a resolution is encouraged to send 
a representative to the Resolutions Committee to explain the resolution. 
The Resolutions Committee will meet at 2:00 p.m. on Tuesday, 
September 30, 2014, at the George R. Brown Convention Center in 
Houston. 

 



	  

8 
	  

If the procedures described above are not followed for any given resolution, that resolution is 
likely to be referred to some other TML committee for further study. In that case, the resolution 
would not be adopted during the 2014 conference. 
 
Under the TML Constitution, resolutions received after the deadline of August 18, 2014, must 
not only have the attached cover sheet, but also must “state the reason precluding timely 
submission.” These late resolutions may be considered by the TML Resolutions Committee at 
the Annual Conference only if two-thirds of the Committee members present and voting agree to 
suspend the submission rule and consider the resolution. 
 
Resolutions may be submitted by mail, fax, or email to Scott Houston, Deputy Executive 
Director and General Counsel, at: 
 
1821 Rutherford Lane, Suite 400 
Austin, Texas 78754 
Fax: 512-231-7490 
Email:  shouston@tml.org 
 
The information above, as well as subject-matter briefing materials and additional information, is 
available on at www.tml.org by clicking on “Legislative Information” and then “Policy 
Committees” from that dropdown menu. 
 
If you have any questions or would like any assistance, please call 512-231-7400 at any time. 
 
 

Payday Lending Clearinghouse Updates 
 
The League’s “Payday Lending Clearinghouse” webpage, available at www.tml.org/payday-
updates, includes information related to the regulation of payday and auto title lenders.  It is 
updated from time-to-time to reflect recent developments. Interested city officials should note 
that the list of cities that have adopted regulations is expanding.  An updated list is available on 
the webpage.  
 
 

TML member cities may use the material herein for any purpose. No other 
person or entity may reproduce, duplicate, or distribute any part of this 
document without the written authorization of the Texas Municipal 
League. 



 

1 
 

 

July 3, 2014 

Number 23 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

TML Board Supports Ending Transportation “Diversions” 
 

On June 27, the League’s board of directors adopted a resolution in support of Texas House 

Speaker Joe Straus’ plan to end the state’s continuing “diversions” of transportation revenue to 

non-transportation programs. 

 

The legislature currently diverts hundreds-of-millions in revenue from the state gas tax and other 

sources to fund other state programs, such as the Department of Public Safety.  In a recent op-ed, 

the Speaker announced his desire to end the practice next session. 

 

The League has, for many sessions, supported the idea.  The following press release was issued 

after the board of directors adopted the resolution: 

 

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE 

June 30, 2014 

 

TML backs Speaker’s goal to end transportation revenue diversions 

 

 AUSTIN—The Texas Municipal League has adopted a resolution in support of 

House Speaker Joe Straus’ goal of ending the diversion of State Highway Fund money 

to non-transportation uses. 

 

 “We wholeheartedly agree revenues collected for transportation should be spent on 

transportation,” said TML President Jungus Jordan of Fort Worth.  “State and Federal 

http://www.tml.org/p/StrausTransportationDiversionBoardResolution_2014.pdf


 

2 
 

funding for highways and transit projects has fallen far short of meeting the needs of 

our rapidly growing population.  The continued economic viability of Texas and quality 

of the life of our citizens is dependent on efficient mobility.” 

 

 According to Speaker Straus, using the State Highway Fund exclusively for 

transportation would increase funding for roads by about $1.3 billion over two years. 

 

 The Speaker recently announced he will propose a state budget next year that uses all 

of the money in the State Highway Fund for transportation instead of sending some of 

those dollars to other state agencies. 

 

 TML supported ending the diversion of transportation revenue in the organization’s 

legislative program for the 2013 legislative session, and Jordan said he will recommend 

that it be included again when TML adopts its issue positions for the 2015 session. 

 

 “We look forward to working with Speaker Straus and partnering with the state to 

address our transportation needs,” Jordan said. 

 

 

House Land and Resource Management Committee 
 

On June 30, the House Land and Resource Management Committee met to consider the 

following charge: 

 

Study current regulatory authority available to municipalities in their extraterritorial 

jurisdiction. Examine how citizens are involved in the zoning process, and make 

necessary recommendations to ensure a proper balance between development activities, 

municipal regulations, and the effect zoning decisions have on Texas citizens. 

 

The committee has considered similar charges each session in recent memory.  The brief hearing 

essentially consisted of a number of landowner, developer, and homebuilder complaints about 

the actions of a handful of cities.  League staff and city officials testified that keeping land use 

decisions local is the best public policy. 

 

Based on committee member comments, next session could see legislation filed that would: 

 

1. prohibit cities from enforcing building codes in their extraterritorial jurisdiction; 

2. allow individual property owners to opt-out of municipal zoning regulations on their 

property; and 

3. require a favorable election in an area prior to that area being annexed. 

When considering the appropriate balance between property rights and municipal authority, 

lawmakers should consider that more than 86 percent of Texans now live in urban areas.   

 

That’s more than 20 million people living and working in close quarters.  It follows that cities 

(the level of government closest to the people) should retain their authority to enact thoughtful 



 

3 
 

and reasonable land use and other regulations to protect property values and the health and safety 

of their residents. 

 

 

How the Hobby Lobby Decision Could Affect Cities 
 

The U.S. Supreme Court recently decided Burwell v. Hobby Lobby Stores, Inc., a case involving 

a religious freedom challenge against the Affordable Care Act’s contraception mandate.  In the 

case, the owners of Hobby Lobby and Conestoga Wood Specialties, two closely-held 

corporations, claimed their religious rights were infringed by the mandate.  The Court held that, 

as applied to closely-held corporations, the contraceptive mandate violated the Religious 

Freedom Restoration Act of 1993 (RFRA).   

 

RFRA prohibits the “[g]overnment from substantially burdening a person’s exercise of religion” 

unless the government can show the burden is in furtherance of a compelling governmental 

interest and is the least restrictive means of furthering that interest.  Until this case, it was not 

clear that RFRA could apply to regulations that govern the activities of closely-held, for-profit 

corporations.  In other words, courts disagreed as to whether such an entity could qualify as a 

“person” who actually exercises religion.   

 

While this case does not deal with a core city issue, its holding has implications for cities 

because of RFRA’s sister statute, the Religious Land Use and Institutionalized Persons Act of 

2000 (RLUIPA).  RLUIPA imposes the same general test as RFRA, but – so far as Texas cities 

are concerned – applies only to land use regulations.  (In the legally-complex 1997 case of City 

of Boerne, Texas v. Flores, the U.S. Supreme Court held RFRA unconstitutional as it applies to 

municipal land use regulations.  RLUIPA is an attempt to “re-enact” those provisions.)   

 

Up to this point, RLUIPA typically allowed only a religious congregation to challenge a city’s 

land use regulations.  After Hobby Lobby, some fear that for-profit corporations may now claim 

religious protections from municipal land use regulations.   

 

In her Hobby Lobby dissent, Justice Ginsburg, citing to an amicus brief submitted by the 

National League of Cities, acknowledges the potential implication for cities: 

   

“[I]t is…strange to attribute to RLUIPA any purpose to cover entities other than 

‘religious assembl[ies] or institution[s].’  That law applies to land-use regulation. To 

permit commercial enterprises to challenge zoning and other land-use regulations under 

RLUIPA would ‘dramatically expand the statute’s reach’ and deeply intrude on local 

prerogatives, contrary to Congress’ intent.”   

 

Just how dramatic this expansion could be remains to be seen.      

  

 

 

 

 



 

4 
 

Water Development Board Seeks Comments on Water Funding 
 

In 2013, the passage of H.B. 4 and S.J.R. 1 created the State Water Implementation Fund for 

Texas (SWIFT) to help finance projects in the state water plan and to provide ongoing state 

financial assistance for water suppliers.   

 

H.B. 4 requires that the Texas Water Development Board (TWDB) adopt rules for the use of 

SWIFT funds.  The TWDB recently authorized the publication of proposed rules relating to the 

disbursement of SWIFT funds.  (The rules are scheduled to be published in the July 11, 2014, 

edition of the Texas Register.) 

 

Prior to drafting the proposed rules, the TWDB held two informal stakeholder meetings in 

Austin and four board meetings around the state during which interested parties were given the 

opportunity to provide public comments.  After formal publication in the Texas Register, the 

TWDB will conduct additional, formal work sessions around the state to accept public 

comments.  Those work sessions are scheduled for: 

 

 July 24, 2014, in San Antonio;  

 August 13, 2014, in San Angelo; and  

 August 21, 2014, in Arlington.   

 

More information on the location and time will be available on the TWDB’s website at 

http://www.twdb.texas.gov.   

 

The following are key provisions of the proposed rules that are of interest to cities: 

 

 H.B. 4 requires that at least 10 percent of SWIFT funds be set aside for projects 

benefitting rural political subdivisions and agricultural water conservation.  The proposed 

rules use the definition of “rural political subdivision” that is contained in Section 15.992 

of the Water Code, which provides that a city with a service area of 10,000 or less in 

population is considered a rural political subdivision. 

 

 H.B. 4 also requires that at least 20 percent of SWIFT funds support projects for water 

conservation and reuse.  The definition of “water conservation” in the proposed rules was 

taken from Chapter 15 of the Water Code: “[T]hose practices, techniques, and 

technologies that will reduce the consumption of water, reduce the loss or waste of water, 

improve the efficiency in the use of water, or increase the recycling and reuse of water so 

that a water supply is made available for future or alternative uses.” 
 

 The proposed rules establish a prioritization system for projects.  The executive 

administrator will prioritize applications for funding based on a point system.  The 

maximum number of points an application can receive is 50 points.  A project will earn 

points based on: (1) whether the population served is large, with greater populations 

served receiving more points; (2) whether the project serves a diverse urban and rural 

population; (3) whether the project serves additional entities in the region; and (4) 

http://www.twdb.texas.gov/


 

5 
 

whether the project meets a high percentage of the water supply needs of users, with a 

higher percentage of need met receiving more points. 

 

 SWIFT funds will be available for the planning and design phase of a project, along with 

funding the construction of the project. 

 

 The proposed rules do not include a rule related to the prioritization of projects by the 

regional water planning groups.  The TWDB intentionally left this out of the proposed 

rules to allow more flexibility for the regional planning groups. 

 

League staff has been monitoring this process and will continue to do so.  Interested cities should 

participate in the process now. 

 

Once the draft rules are published in the Texas Register, the formal comment period is officially 

open and will continue until September 1, 2014. Interested parties can view the rules and submit 

comments on the TWDB website at http://www.twdb.texas.gov/ or by emailing comments to 

rulescomments@twdb.texas.gov.          

 

   

 
 

TML member cities may use the material herein for any purpose. No other 

person or entity may reproduce, duplicate, or distribute any part of this 

document without the written authorization of the Texas Municipal 

League. 

http://www.twdb.texas.gov/
mailto:rulescomments@twdb.texas.gov


 

 

 

COUNCIL MEETING 

6-12-2014 

AGENDA ITEM #3 

 

RESOLUTION 14-736 

 

PUBLIC RECORDS FEE SCHEDULE 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



CITY OF HUMBLE 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 14-736 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF HUMBLE, TEXAS, ESTABLISHING A FEE 

SCHEDULE FOR PUBLIC RECORDS REQUESTS AND PROVIDING AN 

EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

WHEREAS, Title 1§70.3 of the Texas Administration Code establishes a rate schedule in which 

government bodies can determine charges to provide copies of public information; now 

therefore 

 

BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF HUMBLE TEXAS: 

 

Section 1:  The City Council of the City of Humble, Texas hereby adopts the following rate 

schedule under §70.3 of the Texas Administrative Code attached hereto as 

“Attachment A.” 

 

Section 2: The City Secretary is authorized to grant a waiver or reduction for charges for 

providing copies of public information pursuant to §552.267 of the Texas 

Government Code 

 

(A)  A governmental body shall furnish a copy of public information without 

charge or at a reduced charge if the governmental body determines that waiver 

or reduction of the fee is in the public interest because furnishing the 

information primarily benefits the general public; or 

 

(B) If the cost to the governmental body of processing the collection of a charge for 

a copy of public information will exceed the amount of the charge, the 

governmental body may waive the charge.  

 

Section 3: This resolution is effective immediately upon its passage. 

 

PASSED, APPROVED, AND RESOLVED this the 10
th
 day of July 2014. 

 

       

      APPROVED: 

 

 

            

      D.G. McMannes 

      Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

Jason Stuebe 

City Secretary 



EXHIBIT “A” 

CITY OF HUMBLE PUBLIC RECORDS FEE SCHEDULE 
 

Information Type Details Cost 

I. Standard-size paper Up to 8 1/2" x 14" $0.10 per page 

   II. Nonstandard size-copy 
  (a) Paper copy 11" x 27" $0.50 each 

(b) Diskette $1.00 each 

(c )  Magnetic tape Actual Cost 

(d) Data Cartridge Actual Cost 

(e ) Tape Cartridge Actual Cost 

(f) VHS Video Cassette $2.50 each 

(g) Audio Cassette $1.00 each 

(h) Mylar Actual Cost 

(i) Blueline/Blueprint Paper Actual Cost 

(j) DVD $3.00 each 

(k) CD-R or CD-RW $1.00 each 

   III. Personnel charge 
  (a) Programming personnel $28.50 per hour 

(b) Other personnel  $15.00 per hour 
*Labor shall not be billed for requests that are 50 or fewer pages unless it is determined that documents 
are located in two separate buildings or at a remote storage facility. 

   IV.  Overhead charge 
 

20% of personnel charge 

   V. Micro Fiche/Film 
 

Actual Cost 

   VI. Remote document retrieval charge 
 

Actual Cost 

   VII.  Computer resource charge 
  (a) Mainframe $10.00 per minute 

(b) Midsize $1.50 per minute 

(c ) Client/Server $2.20 per hour 

(d) PC or Lan $1.00 per hour 

   VIII.  Miscellaneous supplies 
 

Actual Cost 

   IX.  Postage & shipping charge 
 

Actual Cost 

   X.  Photographs 
 

Actual Cost 

   Estimates may be requested before ordering copies of the documents/records requested. 

   If the city determines that compiling or photocopying the requested documents/records will exceed $40.00 
in charges, a written estimate of charges will automatically be generated and provided to requestor. 

   Requestor must respond to the estimate of charges within ten (10) days, in writing, informing the city 
whehter the charges are accepted - otherwise the request for information will be deemed withdrawn. 

 

ALL FEES MUST BE PAID VIA CASH OR CHECK 



 

 

 

COUNCIL MEETING 

7-10-2014 

AGENDA ITEM #4 

 

 

ATASCOCITA PLAZA DEVELOPMENT PLAT 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 





 

COUNCIL MEETING 

7-10-2014 

AGENDA ITEM #5 

 

 

CONCRETE AND ASPHALT PAVEMENT 

IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT CONTRACT 

AMENDMENT 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

7322 Southwest Fwy Suite 1040  •  Houston, TX 77074  • (713) 400-ARKK • www.arkkengineers.com •  TX PE Firm No. 13872 

 

 

 
July 3, 2014 
 
 
Mr. Barry K. Brock 
Director of Public Works 
City of Humble 
102 Granberry 
Humble, Texas 77338 
 
Re: Contract Amendment for Engineering Services for 2013 Concrete & Asphalt Pavement 

Improvements Project. 

 
Dear Mr. Brock: 
 
As discussed, ARKK Engineering is requesting an amendment to the existing contract for 
performing additional survey, signal design and tree protection plans at requested locations for 
wok to be added to the design of the Concrete and Asphalt Pavement Improvement Projects.   
 
The additional survey consist of providing topographical survey for the proposed sidewalk 
around the McDonalds at Wilson and Will Clayton Parkway, traffic signal improvements at 
Wilson Road and Isaacks Road, and additional parking at the Civic Arena. 
 
This amendment will also add money to the contract to cover the cost of the sub-contractors 
providing the design of the signal improvements at Wilson Rd. and Isaacks Rd. and the tree 
protection plans prepared for the paving improvements along Main St., Anne St., and 
Windswept. 
 
As we discussed, ARKK Engineers is not requesting or charging the City of Humble any 
additional fees for the design of the sidewalk or the additional parking and detention 
improvements at the Civic Center.  We are requesting that the fees we have to pay our sub-
consultants to provide the information necessary to complete the design be added to the contract 
in order that we can be reimbursed these costs per the contract. 
 
The adjustment to the contract fees is the addition of the following amounts to the existing 
contract: 
 

Survey     $16,525.00 
Traffic Signal Design   $27,750.00 
Tree Protection Plans   $  3,600.00 
Total Contract Amendment  $47,875.00 

 
 



 

7322 Southwest Fwy Suite 1040  •  Houston, TX 77074  • (713) 400-ARKK • www.arkkengineers.com •  TX PE Firm No. 13872 

 

 

ARKK Engineers appreciates the opportunity the City of Humble has given us and we look 
forward to continuing our work with the City of Humble. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
ARKK Engineers, LLC      Approved By: 
 
 
 
John D. Rudloff, P.E.      _________________________ 
Principal       Darrell Boeske 
        City Manager  




